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11|l For Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission

12 I‘IEJ

13 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
14 SAN FRANCIS@ DIVISION
: 218
r ) 3 ] 9
16 || FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, )
)
17 Plaintiff, )
)
18 v )
19 )
KEN CHASE )
20 d/b/a Free Do Not Call List.org )
91 and d/b/a National Do Not Call List.US, )
" )
22 Defendant. )
)
23
24 COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF
25
Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC” or “Commission™), for its Complaint
26 : -
all :
27 | 8
2 1. The FTC brings this action under Sections 5(a) and 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15
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U.S.C. §§ 45(a) and 53(b), to obtain temporary, preliminary, and permanent injunctive relief,
rescission of contracts, restitution, disgorgement, and other equitable relief for the Defendant’s
violations of Section S(a) of the FTC Act, 15 US.C. § 45(2).
JURISDICTION

2. ' This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
§§ 1331, 1337(a), and 1345, and 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b, This action arises under 15 U.S.C.
§ 45(a)(1).
f VENUE
:;;. Venue in the United States District Court for the Northemn District of California is

. RE
proper under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b), and 15 U.S.C. § 53(b). '

INTRADISTRICT ASSIGNMENT
4. A substantial portion of the events that give rise to the claims asserted in this
matter occurred in Marin County, California. Therefore, this case should be assigned to the San

Francisco or Oakland Division of this Court.
" THE PARTIES

5. Plaintiff, the FTC, is an independent agency of the United States Government
created by statute. 15 U.S.C. §§ 41 et seq. The Commission is charged, int& alia, with
enforcement of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), which prohibits unfair or
| deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commer.cc, as well as with enforcement of the
Telemarketing Sales Rule, 16 C.F.R. § 310. The Commission is anthorized to initiat;a federal
district court procéedings; by its own attorneys, to enjoin violations of the FTC Act in order to
secure such equitable relief as may be appropriate in each case, and to obtain consumer redress.

15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b.
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T 6. The Defendant Ken Chase d/b/a Free Do Not Call List.org, and d/b/a National Do
Not Call List.US resides in Novato, California. The Defendant purports to offer consumers

various means to stop telemarketing calls, including by misrepresenting that Free Do Not Call

List.org and National Do Not Call List.US can ammge for consumers’ telephone numbers to be
placed on the FTC’s National Do Not Call Registry. The Defendant has transacted business in
the Northern Distrigt of California. |
COMMERCE
7. At all times relevant to this Complaint, the Defendant has maintained a substantial
course of trade or business in-the-o}feﬁn’gifo; sz;le and sale of products and or services, in or
affecting commaerce, as “commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44. g

THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION’S
ll DO NOT CALL REGISTRY AND THE DEFENDANTS’ BUSINESS PRACTICES

8. On January 29, 2003, the Federal Trade Commission published in the Federal
Register a final amended Telemarketing Sales Rule (the “amended Rule”) and the accompanying
Statement of Basis and Purpose (the “Statement of Basis and Purpose™). 68 Fed. Reg. 4580.

9. Among other things, the amended Rule provides for the establishment of a

National Do Not Call Registry. The Registry will be maintained by the FTC and will permit
consumers who }prefer not to receiye telemarketing calls to contact one central registry to place
their telephone numbers on the registry of phone numbers not to be called by telemarketers
subject to the FTC’s jurisdiction. Starting in July, consumers throughout the United States will
be able to place their home and cell phone numbers on the FTC’s Do Not Call Registry at no cost
to the COTSUMIETS,

10.  As of October 1; 2003, telemnarketers subject to the FTC’s jurisdiction will be

prohibited from calling the phone numbers on the FTC Registry. Telemarketers within the

—
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FTC’s jurisdiction will be potentially subj ect fo civil 'penalties of up to $11,000 for each call they
make to consumers whose phone numbers are on the FTC Registry. See 15U.S.C. §
45(m)(1)(a), as modified by 28 U.S.C. 246i & 1.98@) of the FTC i{;ﬂes' of Practice, 16 CFR
1.98(d); and 15 U.S.C. § 6102(c).

11.  In the course of the FTC’s rulemaking, more than 44,000 commenters expressed
support for the creation of a Natioﬁal Do Not Call Registry.

12.  Some commenters suggested that third party registration could lead to abusive
practices, such as companies deceptively offering to add consumers telephone numbers to the
FTC Registry for a fee. | |

13.  Inits Statement ;:»f Basis and Purpose, the Commission determined that third parcyI 1
registration should not be permitted. Indeed, the FTC has designed procedures to ensure that

telephone numbers are not entered in bulk into the National Do Not Call Registry. See 68 Fed.

Reg. 4580 at 4639 (Jan. 29, 2003).

14.  The only exceptions the Commission made to the prohibition on third party
registration were to agree to add to the FTC’s National Do Not Call Registry lists of subscribers
com'piled by state governments pursuant to state do-not-call laws, in order to ham;onize federal
and state do not call laws, and to offer to include in the F'fC Registry the established do not call
list maintained by the Direct Marketing Association. Id. at 4641.

15.  Despite the fact that the FTC has made clear that it will prevent other third parties
from placing consumers’ phone mumbers on the FTC’s National Do Not Call Registry, the
Defendant Kenneth Chase represents that Free Do Not Call List.org and National Do Not Call

List, US will arrange for consumers’ phone numbers to be placed on the FTC’s Do Not Call
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" 16.  Since at least March 2003, and continuing thereafter, through the website ‘

www.free-do-not-call-list,org, Defenidant Kenneth Chase d/b/a Free Do Not Call List.org has

represented that coMas can “pferegistcr fbr the proposed FTC D§ Not Call List” by
providing d/b/a Free Do Not Call List.org with their personal identifying information.

17.  Comnsumers who attempt to preregister for the FTC’s Do Not Call Registry
through Free Do Not Call List.org’s website receive email from Free Do Not Call List.org which
says:"

Your pre-registration has been receivéd for the FTC’s National Do Not Call list.

Your information will be transmitted to the FTC as soon as the list becomes
available, proposed for the last quarter of 2003.

18.  Through Free Do Not Call List.org’s website, consumers can request that Free Do
Not Call List.org send email information to other consumers. The email that Free Do Not Call

List sends out says:

If you are interested in signing up for the Federal Trade Commission’s National Do Not Call
List, I"ve found this website where you can pre-register and its FREE!

They will automatically get your-name included on the National Do Not Call LIST when it is
activated so that you can be one of the first on the list.

19.  The Free Do Not Call List.org website also directs consurers who want to stop
receiving telernarketing to what it describes as “the Active list” at www.national-do-not-call-

ligt us.

20. Since at least Jannary 2003, and continuing thereafter, through the website,

www.national-do-not-call-list.us, the Defendant Kenneth Chase has represented that by

subscribing to National Do Not Call List.US’s service, consumers can stop receiving

telemarketing calls, junk faxes and junk email.
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21 Itcosts between $9.99 to $17.99 for an annual subscription to National Do Not
Call List.US’s services.
22.  National Do Not Cal] List.US clalms that one of the services it provides 1ts
subscribers is placement on the FTC’s National Do Not Call Registry. The National Do Not Call

List.US website states:

The Federal Trade Commission is attempting [a national do not call list run by the government],
but there is no way to sign up for it at present. Once the govemmcnt list is a reality, we will
submit the necessary information on your behalf,

23.  The Defendant’s misrepresentations about the ability of Free Do Not Cz;ll List.org |
and National Do Not Call List.US to arrange for consumers® telephone numbers to be placed on
the FTC’s National Do Not Call Registry are likely to lead consumers to subscribe to
Defendant’s seﬁccs and to fail to avail themselves of one of the actual methods they can use to
place their phone numbers on the FTC’s National Do Not Call Registry.

24,  The Defendant’s misrepresentations are likely to hinder or preclude some of those
consumers who most want to be on the National Do Not Call Registry from receiving the

benefits of the Registry.
VIOLATIONS OF SECTION 5 OF THE FIC ACT

25.  Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), prohibits “unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in or affecting commeree.”
COUNT I
26.  Paragraphs 1 through 24 are incorporated herein by reference.
27.  Innumerous instances in the course of offering his services, the Defendant Ken
Chase d/b/a Free Do Not Call List.org and‘National Do Not Call List.US represents, expressly or

by implication, that i1e can arrange for consumers’ phone numbers to be placed on the FTC’s
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National Do Not Call Registry.
28.  Intruth and in fact, the Defendant cannot arrange for consumers’ phone numbers
to be placed o.n the FTC’s National Do Not Call Registry.
25.  Therefore, the Defendant’s representations as set forth in Paragraph 27 are false

and misleading and constitute a deceptive act or practice in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC

Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a).
CONSUMER INJURY

30.  Consumers nationwide have suffered or will suffer substantial injury as a result of

the Defendant’s violations of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act. Absent injunctive relief by this Couxt,
11

7/

the Defendant is likely to continue to injure consumers and harm the public interest.
THIS COURT’S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF
31, Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.5.C. § 53(b), empowers this Court to grant
injunctive and other ancillary relief, including consumer redress, disgorgement and restitutic;n, 1o
prevent and remedy any violations of any ﬁrovision of law enforced by the Federal Trade
Commission.
32. This Court, inn the exercise of its eqmtable Jjurisdiction, may award ancillary relief

to remedy injury caused by the defendants’ law violations.

'PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the plaintiff requests that this Court, as authorized by Sections 13(b) and
19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b, and pursuant to its own equitable pm-vers:

1. Award the plaintiff such preliminary injunctive and ancillary relief, including a
temporary resiraining order, as may be necessary to avert the likelihood of consumer injury

during the pendency of this action, and to preserve the possibility of effective final relief:
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2. Pmnanentlir enjoin the Defendant from violating the FTC Act:
3. Award such relief as the Court finds necessary to redress injury to consumers
resulting from the Defendant’s violations of the FTC Act, includiné but not limited to, rescission
of contracts, the refund of monies paid, and the disgorgement of ill-gotten gains by the

Defendgnt; and

l 4. Award Plaintiff the costs of bringing this action, as well as such other and

additional relief as the Court may determine to be just and proper.

Respectfully submitted,
l WILLIAM E. KOVACIC

T ’(040‘1 2. W
DAVID M. NEWMAN (54218)
Federal Trade Commission

901 Market St, Suite 570

San Francisco, CA 94103
Telephone:  415-848-5100
Facsimile: 415-848-5184

ELIZABETH A. HONE

BRAD WINTER

600 Pennsylvania Avenue NW

Washington, DC 20580

Telephone:  (202) 326-3207
(202) 326-2597

Facsimile:  (202) 326-3395

Dated: May & 2003
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